NOTICE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL MEETING
December 8, 2020
at 6:00 p.m.

THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY

The City Council of the City of Pontiac will hold a Formal Meeting on December 8, 2020 at 6:00
p.m. This meeting will be held electronically as allowed by the amended Open Meetings Act. The
agenda for the Formal Meeting is attached. The Pontiac City Council gives notice of the following:

1. Procedures. The public may view the meeting electronically through the following
method.

http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php

2. Public Comment. For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us.
Additionally, you may submit your public comment in writing directly to the Office
of the City Clerk during regular business hours. All public comments must be
received no later than 5:30 p.m. on December 8, 2020. Public comments are limited
to three (3) minutes. The City Clerk will read your comments during the public
comment section of the meeting, '

3. Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities may participate in the meeting
through the methods set forth in paragraph 2. Individuals with disabilities requiring
auxiliary aids or services in order to attend electronically should notify the Interim
City Clerk, Garland Doyle at (248) 758-3200 or clerk@pontiac.mi.us at least 24
hours in advance of the meeting.

Dated 12-3-2020, 5:30 p.m.

Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk

City of Pontiac

47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL

Kermit Williams, District 7
President

Randy Carter, District 4
President Pro Tem

Patrice Waterman, District 1
Megan Shramski, District 2

Mary Pietila, District 3

Gloria Miller, District 5

Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6

It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life
Sor its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.”

Website: http://pontiac.mi.us/council/meeting agendas.and minutes/index.php

FORMAL MEETING
December 8, 2020
6:00 P.M.
204" Session of the 10" Council
Call to order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes
1. November 21, 2020 Special Meeting

2. December 1,2020 Study Session
Special Presentation (Limited to 10 minutes.)
3. 2021-2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman and Vern Gustafsson, Planning Manager
Recognition of Elected Officials
Agenda Address

Agenda Items

Resolutions
City Clerk
4, Resolution to approve Brian Stair, Global Alliance Protective Group, LLC as the Professional Expert-Security
Consultant for Medical Marihuana and agreement not to exceed $13,500.00.

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 Phone (248) 758-3200
Website: http://pontiaccityclerk.com




Department of Public Works (DPW)

5. Resolution to approve proposed budget amendment for fiscal year 2020-2021 to reallocate $190,000.00 of the
Council adopted budgeted expenditures from the General Fund. The total funds amount of $190,000.00 are to
be used to pay for Pontiac’s Contractual Mowing Services during fiscal year 2020-2021 (An account number
will need to be designated in the resolution for the budget amendment)

6. Resolution to approve a one year extension of the janitorial contract with CleanNet of Greater Michigan

Public Comment

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments

Adjournment



#1
MINUTES
11-21-20



November 21, 2020 Special
Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
201" Session of the Tenth Council

Call to order

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on Saturday,
November 21, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. by Council President Kermit Williams.

Roll Call

Members Present: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams.
Members Absent: Pro Tem Carter and Miller

Mayor Waterman was present.

Clerk announced a. quorum.

Excuse Councilmembers

20-529 Motion to excuse Pro Tem Carter and Councilperson Mlller for personal reasons. Moved
by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, and Williams
No: None
Motion Carried

Discussion on additional information on‘Dearborn Capital and with bond counsel on alternative
mechanisms for financing on debt placement and potentially take action on these items.

20-530 Resolution to approve purchase'hnd sale agreement incorporating the letter we received
Nov 20" from Mr. Brian Wloch and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement accepting the terms and
conditions there in. Moved by Councﬂperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramsk1 Taylor—Burks &Waterman .
- No: Williams b
Resolution Passed :
Note: T2 Capital Management, LLC letter is attached as Exhlblt A..Dearborn Captial letter is attached as

Exhibit B. Agreement between City of Pontlac and Dearborn Capital Partners, LLC is attached as Exhibit

Public Comment - Nene

Adjournment '
Council President Kermlt Williams adjourned the meeting at 10:26 a.m.

GARLAND S DOYLE
INTERIM CITY CLERK



Exhibit A

. CAPITAL
. MANAGEMENT"

November 20, 2020

The Honotrable Mayor Deirdre Waterman via Email | giblaw @hotmail.com
C/O Matthew Gibb

33 N Saginaw

Pontiac, Ml 48232

Re: 31Judson and 51111 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml 48232
Acquisition Financing for Ottawa Towers | / 1l

Dear Matt,

On behalf of T2 Capital Management, LLC (“T2"), | am thankful to offer this Letter of Intent (“LOI") to
provide financing to facilitate the purchase of the above referenced property (“Loan™). The Loan is secured
by the property and improvements located at 31 Judson and 51111 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml (“Property). It is
understood that the property consists of two 9-story office buildings containing approximately 425,000 sf, ‘

This LOI is presented as an expression of interest and is not to be construed as a formal commitment. Upon
your acceptance of this LOI, T2 will complete its due diligence and seek to provide a formal commitment

and/or loan documents ‘shortly thereafter. The following outlines the general terms of T2's proposed
financing:

Borrower: A to-be-formed SPE in form and substance acceptable to Lender (“Borrower”)

Loan amount: Capped at the lesser of (i) $6,300,000, (i) 35% Loan-to-Cost, (iii} 50% Loan-to-
Value or (iv) Debt Yield not-less-than 12.0%

Funding: Borrower shall contribute $6,800,000 in equity.

Among other customary conditions precedent to closing T2's loan, the following
shall have been satisfied, each in form and substance acceptable to Lender:

1. Opinion of legal counsel that the City of Pontiac can borrow and guaranty debt
to facilitate the proposed acquisition

2. Receipt and review of financial statements for the City of Pontiac
3. Receipt and review of any and all documentation related to the Seller financing

4. Receipt and review of any and all documentation related to the proposed land
contract sale to Dearborn Capital Partners

5. Receipt and review of the lease between The City of Pontiac and Dearborn
Capital Partners for the Phoenix Center Parking Garage

Page 10f4




Term:

RepaYment:

Interest Rate:
Up-front points:

Deferred points:

Minimum Interest:

Collateral:

Recourse:

Title Insurance:

Flood Insurance:

| CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT"

6. The property must be in compliance with all municipal codes and without any
outstanding nor known pending violations

7. Review and approval of all applicable Lease Agreements

8. Review and approval of bank statements, and supporting historical financial
statemnents / rent roll applicable to the subject property

9. Review and approval of the CapEx and TI/LC budget applicable to the subject
property

10, Receipt and approval all customary due diligence items including, but not
limited to (i) Title Commitment for a Lenders Loan Policy, (il) ALTA survey(s),
(i) environmental report(s), (iv) current zoning, (v) Easement Agreement(s),
(vi) appraisal, (vii) property condition report, (vili) organizational documents,
and (ix) financlal statements and tax returns for all guarantors

Twelve months from the date of close

Interest-only will be payable on the outstanding loan balance each month that the
loan remains outstanding

Prime Rate plus 6.75%, floating with a floor of 10.0%-
$63,000 (1%) will be paid to T2 at closing

Regardless of when the loan is repaid, $126,000 (2%) in deferred points are to be
paid to Lender at the earlier of loan maturity or payoff of the loan

A minimum of $315,000 in interest must have been paid to T2 prior to payoff of the
loan. To the extent that the loan is slated to be paid off prior to T2 having recelved
less than $315,000 in interest, the difference Is to be pald to T2 at payoff

1* mortgage on the subject property and assignment of all rents, leases, UCCs,
management agreements, licenses, etc. .

Full joint and severa!l recourse to the City of Pontiac, Bob Waun and Brien Wloch

T2 isto receive acceptabile title insurance at closing. The policy is to include mechanic's
llen coverage, a survey, location and access endorsements, and any other
endorsements required by T2

The survey is to contain certification that the subject property Is not located within a
designated flood hazard area. If the subject property is located within a flood hazard
area and T2 elects to go forward with the loan, acceptable flood insurance must be:

Issued at closing.
Page 2 of 4




Taxes:

Insurance:

Appraisal:

Leverage:

Reporting:

Financial Covenants:

Special Condition:

Loan %dlcation:

Earnest Deposit:

Expenses:

Broker:

Closing date:

| CAPITAL
ﬂngANAGEMENT”

Property taxes applicable to the subject property must be paid current throughout the
time that T2's loan remains outstanding. Such taxes are expected to be paid out of
the property tax escrow

The subject property and any applicable construction work must be adequately
insured as approved by T2 throughout the time that T2's loan remains outstanding.
Property insurance is expected to be paid out of the insurance escrow.

Lender will order a FIRREA compliant appraisal. The loan will be subject to LTV
covenant not to exceed 50%.

Beyond Lenders proposed loan, no leverage is permitted to encumber any portion of
Lenders collateral.

Borrower is to provide a Rent Roll of the subject property as well as its financials (i.e.
P&L, Balance Sheet, etc.) to T2 on a quarterly basis by no later than 30 days from the
calendar quarter-end (i.e. March 31 reports are to be provided to T2 by no later than
April 30).

Borrower is to maintain:
o A Debt Yield of at least 9.0%
o A DSCR of at least 1.30x (NOI/T2’s prevailing debt service on annualized basis)

Dearborn Capital Partner and The City of Pontiac will be co-borrowers

Lender reserves the right to syndicate and/or sell part of the proposed Loan. While
the Loan is not subject to such syndication or Loan sale, Borrower agrees to cooperate
with Lender as it relates to any efforts toward that end

Upon acceptance of this LOI, Borrower is to pay T2 a $50,000 earnest deposit -
("EMD"). The EMD is to be wired to T2 (wiring instructions on the following page)
and will be credited against the up-front points at closing. If closing does not
materialize, $10,000 will be retained by T2, with the balance refunded to Borrower,
less any costs incurred by T2 in its conducting due diligence (i.e. legal, 3" party reports,
travel, etc.)

All expenses incurred by T2 to affect this transaction shall be borne by Borrower.
These costs may be covered via loan proceeds and include but not limited to legal

fees, title fees, 3* party reports, travel, etc.

T2 and Borrower acknowledge that no broker was involved in effectuating this
proposed transaction.

Assuming completion of due diligence, T2 will seek to be able to close the loan by no
later than January 4, 2021,

Page 3 of 4




e | CAPITAL

T

o | MANAGEMENT"

Post-closing: Upon consummating the proposed acquisition as outlined in this LOI, Borrower grants
T2 the right to reference the transaction in its marketing materials (i.e. brochures,
website, etc.). The reference may include photos of the subject property and/or written
materials such as summaries of the transaction, testimonials, etc.

Please remit the $50,000 EMD and sign and return this LOI to me on or before Tuesday, November 24, 2020.

Sincerely, "~ Acknowledged and Agreed on behalf of Borrower and Guarantor(s):

Printed name: - . .

Dennis Jacobs

Chief Credit Officer
Signature: . )
Date: ‘ -

Cc: Jeff Brown | T2 CEO / Co-ClO
John Felker | T2 Co-ClO

Wiring instructions

CIBC Bank USA
120 S. LaSalle Street
Chicago, IL 60603

Routing #: 071006486
Account #: 2690837

Account name:
T2 Strategic Real Estate Income Fund, LLC

' Page 14 of 4




Exhibit B

Dearborn Capital

Commercial Real Estate

November 20, 2020

Members of Council, -
We ate hopeful for your acceptance and approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement at your November 21, 2020
meeting. It is important that our partnership move forward on Saturday as the time limits imposed by the Global
Settlement Agreement are fast approaching. While we have worked to achieve several important pre-conditions, in
order to meet the deadlines imposed in your approved settlement we do need a signed agreeirient to quickly move -
forward.

Several concepts and questions have come to us over the course of your present consideration and we want to assure
council of certain aspects of our proposal, We are committed to working with the City in planning a dynamic vision
for the Phoenix Center, one that will benefit the entire community, As parr of the language in the Agreement that.
speaks to our Public Private Partnership, please know we are committed to the:following:

e Exploring the feamblhty of incorporating the library or a commumty themed resource center into the
complex

o Enhancing the reach of educational and training resources to the community

e Collaborating in the development of other City owned assets like the Perdue School
Assuring that the long-term parking commitments are tied to tunely and quality development of the
Center

¢  Adopting language that allows the City to compel progress if aspects of the redevelopment stall.

Upon execution of the agreement between us, we are ready too immediately work with the City, its staff and council,
to finalize all the additional documents for this exciting partnership. As final assurance, we want the City to know
that our company has a commitment to social justice and community empowerment. Dearborn Capltal asan
Exclusive Correspondent of T2 Capital Management has access to T2’s dynamic Social Impact Fund, which focuses
on providing workforce housing on a national basis. The fund, which was launched at the beginning of 2020 is
currently completing two 1edeveiopment workforce housing projects in Florida. We intend to deploy that same

creativity and commitment in Pontiac. The T2 team is available to meet in person, as the situation allows, or via -
Zoom at your convenience,

Further, as this moves forward our team will coordinate resources so that residents and businesses in Pontiac have an
open opportunity to be invelved in this project.

We look forward to working with you to move quickly to the next important step of this partnership.
Sincerely
Brien Wloch

980 North Micligan Suite 1620 Chicago, 1L 60611 Phone: 812.882,4300 e
I-Mail: brienavloch@deareapere.com Wels: deareapere.com



Exhibit C |

AGREEMENT OF SALE AND PURCHASE

OTTAWA TOWERS AND OTHER PROPERTY, PONTIAC, MICHIGAN

THIS AGREEMENT OF SALE'AND PURCHASE (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between the parties listed below as “Seller” and “Purchaser”, effective as of the date Seller executes this Agreement
(the “Effective Date”).

1. BASIC TERMS, The following shall constitute the Basic Terms of this Agreement;

Seller

CITY OF PONTIAC
47450 Woodward Ave
Pontiac, MI 48342
Attn: Deirdre Waterman
Phone; (248) 758-3000

Copy To: John C. Clark, Esq.
101 W Big Beaver Rd.

Troy, M148084

Phone: (248) 457-7000
Email: jelark@gmbhlaw.com

Purchaser

DEARBORN CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC,
980 N Michigan Ave Suite 1620
Chicago, IL 60611
Phone: 312.882.4300
Email:brien.wloch@dearcapcre.com
Atin: Brien Wloch

Copy To: William Freeman

33 Bloomfield Hiils Pkwy, Ste 100
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304
Phone: 248-724-3706

Email: wireeman@lfglawfirm.com

Property/Project: That certain office buildings known as Ottawa Towers, consisting of;,

51111 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 48342

One (1) eight-story office building of approximately 225,303 square feet in the aggregate,
approximately 147,303 of which is leased by the State of Michigan under four separate
leases (the “State Lease”), and situated on Parcel ID 14-32-226-020, as more particularly
described on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto, including the so-called “Grassy Lot”, also
described on Exhibit A-1, This property is commonly known and herein referred to as
“Ottawa Tower I”,

31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 48342

One (1) eight-story office building of approximately 207,084 square feet in the aggregate
situated on Parcel ID 14-32-227-002, as more particularly described on Exhibit A-2 attached
hereto. This property is commonly known and herein referred to as “Ottawa Tower I1”,




In addition to the following properties as deseribed on Exhibit A-3, representing
PINs 14-32-226-021, 14-29-484-003, 14-29-484-010, 14-32-231-009, 14-32-227-003 and
the triangle parcel across Jackson Street from 140 S. Saginaw.

Collectively, the property (“Property”)

Purchase Price: $7,400,000.00, which shall be paid by and from Purchaser:

Accelerated Closing. Due to the requirement that the Global Settlement Agreement between
the City of Pontiac and Charles Stephens must close, on or before January 4, 2021, with only
two (2) fifteen (15) day extensions available to the City in the event of a necessary delay,
Purchaser has agreed to the following:

a. Purchaser’s earnest money deposit of $100,000, defined below, shall be applied to
the purchase price at closing.

b. Purchaser shall pay an additional $300,000 in cash at Closing;

c. The Seller shall continue to own the Propetty as security.

d. The parties will enter a Land Contract providing for the payment from Purchaser to
Seller of $7,000,000 within 12 months of the date of closing, with interest at the
rate of 3% accruing on the amount not financed pursuant to paragraph (c) below,
and subject to any costs or charges in this Agreement

e. The Land Contract may be paid off at any time without penalty.

f.  Purchaser shall have an equity interest in the property pursuant to the Land Contract
and as such may use and occupy the Property during the term of the Land Contract,
holding Seller harmless from any liability or action arising out of the possession and
use of the property. All work, improvement or investment, if any, shall be
completed at Purchasers sole risk,

g. TO ASSURE THE CASH NECESSARY TO CLOSE THE GLOBAL
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT the City will retain a fee simple interest in the
Property as security for Purchasers obligations under the Land Contract and the
parties shall commit and agree to the following;

1. Seller and Purchaser shall act as co-borrowers and obtain a loan from
Purchasers directly related equity fund, known as T2 Capital Management,
secured by a mortgage on the Property in the amount of $6,300,000,

1. The parties will document the loan as follows:

a) The City of Pontiac will join the mortgage, pledging the
Property as collateral, and acting as a guarantor under its terms;
b) Brien Wloch and Robert Waun (each a “Guarantor, and

collectively, the “Guarantors™) shall execute individual personal
guarantees in favor of lender and upon such terms as agreed by
lender, and providing to lender evidence of net worth or other
personal capital sufficient to guarantee the loan amount..

iii,  The proceeds of the loan shall be allocated such that $6,200,000 is
dedicated to closing capital and $100,000 for all lender fees or other costs
of securing the loan from lender

iv.  Except in an instance of default under the terms of the loan, Purchaser
assumes responsibility for all payments or liabilities arising from the loan,
and Purchaser shall pay the debt service on said loan.

Earnest Money: $100,000.00, to be delivered to the Title Company (defined below) on or
before five (5) business days after the Effective Date (defined below). Such deposit is
referred to as the “Earnest Money”. The Earnest Money is to be placed in an interest-bearing




account, the interest being the property of the party entitled to the Earnest Money as hetein
provided, and which shall be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing.

ATA National Title Group (Seavel Title Agency)
¢/o John Cook

42651 Woodward Avenue

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304

CLOSING. Closing shall occur on or before January 4, 2021 at a place and time mutually agreed upon by
the parties, provided, however, that Purchaser may extend the Closing until February 4, 2021 by exercising
two separate fifteen (15) day extensions, as outlined in the Global Settlement Agreement, by payment of
additional Earnest Money in the amount of $25,000 for each extension, which shall also be applied to the
Purchase Price at Closing. The procedure to be followed by the parties in connection with the Closing shall
be as follows:

d.

At the Closing the Seller shall cause to be delivered to the Title Company (sometimes herein
referred to as the “Escrow Agent™) or to Purchaser, as applicable, the items specified herein and
the following documents and instruments duly executed and acknowledged, in recordable form
and in form acceptable to Purchaser:

i. A warranty deed (the “Deed”) dated as of the Closing Date, conveying Ottawa Tower I,
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, to be held in escrow pending payment of the
Land Contract;

il. A warranty deed (the “Deed”) dated as of the Closing Date, conveying Ottawa Tower II,
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, to be held in escrow pending payment of the
Land Contract;

iil, An Assignment of Leases (including the Ground Leases) and Contracts and Bill of Sale,
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C” (the “Lease Assignment”);

iv. Possession of the Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions (defined below);

v. Seller shall submit to each Tenant under the Leases a Tenant Estoppel (herein so called)
in the form required by Purchaser’s lender and shall thereafter use commercially
reasonable efforts to obtain an executed Tenant Estoppel from each such Tenant, Seller
agrees to circulate with the Tenant Estoppels any SNDA form required by Purchaser’s
lender;

vi. A certificate in such form as may be required by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to
Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the regulations
issued pursuant thereto, certifying as to the nonforeign status of a transferor, in the form
required by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”); and

vil. Warranty deeds to the properties described in Exhibit A-3, in the form attached as
Exhibit D;
viii. A form of Land Contract acceptable to the patties, in addition to a Deed Escrow
Agreement;
ix. Such other documents as may be required by the Title Company or either party.

At the Closing, in order to assure the Sellers closing of the Global Settlement Agreement,
Purchaser shall deliver to the Seller funds, payable to the Seller, in an amount not less than
$6,600,000 representing that portion of the Settlement amount required by Seller to satisfy the
Global Settlement Agreement as of January 4, 2021, or as extended,, plus or minus the prorations
described below and applying a credit equal to the Earnest Money, and the loan amounts set forth
above.. Purchaser shall also execute and deliver a Lease Assignment acknowledging that
Purchaser has assumed all obligations of Seller and all rights thereto have transferred to Purchaser,
holding Seller harmless from all obligations or liability attributed to such Lease Agreement(s)
arising from and after the date of closing.

Upon the completion of the deliveries specified above, the Escrow Agent shall be authorized to
cause the appropriate closing documents to be immediately recorded in the appropriate records of




the county in which the Property is located, and shall deliver the balance of the proceeds from the
sale to Seller, after deducting all expenses thereof or such other items as may be specified herein.
As soon as reasonably possible after Closing, the Title Company shall cause an Owner’s Title
Policy to be issued, with the basic premium to be paid by Seller, and the premiums for extended
coverage or endorsements required by Purchaser or its lender shall be paid by Purchaser. Seller
and Purchaser shall also execute and deliver all documents reasonably required by the Title
Company to consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement,

3. EVIDENCE OF TITLE / DILIGENCE. Upon execution of this Agreement, Purchaser and/or Seller, as
the case may be, shall perform the following within the time stated, each of which shall be a condition
precedent to Closing: :

a.

As evidence of title, within ten (10) days after the Effective Date, Seller, at Seller’s sole cost an
expense, shall obtain a Commitment for Title Insurance ot a Commitment to Insure, in either case
with the standard exceptions deleted (the “Commitment”) dated not earlier than the date of this
Agreement, issued by the Title Company, showing Seller’s title to the Property to be good and
marketable, together with true, correct and legible copies of all items and documents referred to
therein, At closing, Seller shall deliver the title in its existing condition and Purchaser shall, by
acceptance of such title, waive any objections to such title except as to warranties contained in the
documents of conveyance,

Purchaser acknowledges receipt of an additional and previously issued commitment for an
AL.T.A. fee owners policy of Title Insurance. This additional commitment is presented as a
courtesy to Purchaser and Seller makes no representation as to its accuracy, and no policy shall be
purchased based upon the provided commitment,

Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that all environmental assessments and other third party
reports, materials, data and other information prepared by others for Seller or for any other person,
and delivered by Seller to Purchaser or otherwise made available to Purchaser for inspection in
connection with this transaction, are provided to Purchaser as a courtesy and convenience only and
Seller expressly disclaims all representations and warranties of every kind concerning such third
party reports. Any reliance on or use of such materials, data or information by Purchaser or any
other person shall be at the sole risk of Purchaser or such other person, and further, Purchaser
acknowledges and agrees that such reliance may be expressly prohibited by the preparer thereof.

Within five (5) days after the Effective Date, Seller will deliver, or make available, to Purchaser
all non-proprietary documents pertaining to the Property in Seller’s possession, including without
limitation the following:

i. Copies of all leases pertaining to the Property;

ii. Certified Rent Rolls for all of the Property that is leased;

iii. Operating statements for all Property for 2017, 2018, 2019 and trailing 12 months;
iv. Breakdown of Dropbox spreadsheet showing expenses of $623,700;

v. All Service Contracts;

vi. All prior title commitments or policies for the Property;

vii. All surveys of the Property;

viii. All Engineering and Environmental reports for the Property;

ix. All Stacking plans for the Property;

X. 12 months of all utility bills for the Property;

xi, All property tax bills for the Property since and including 2019;

xii. All Security Deposit records for the Property;

xiii. A site plan which includes all Property for potential future development;
xiv, The Phoenix Center Engineering Study




Purchaser shall have the right to perform any and all inspections or studies of the Property which
Purchaser may desire, up to the date of Closing, including but not limited to a physical and
mechanical inspection of the Property, a feasibility study of the Property, interviews with tenants
of the Property and an inspection of all books and records and financial information pertaining
thereto (the “Inspection Period”). A representative of Seller shall be entitled to be present during
all such inspections. . Purchaser shall be responsible for any and all losses, damages, charges and
other costs associated with such inspections and studies, and Purchaser covenants and agrees to
repair any damage to the Property caused by such inspections and studies. Purchaser agrees not to
allow any liens to arise against the Property as a result of such inspections and studies and agrees
to indemnify and hold Seller hatmless from and against any and all claims, charges, actions, costs,
suits, damages, injuries, or other liabilities which arise, either directly or indirectly, from
Purchaser’s or its agent’s or employee’s entry onto the Property prior to Closing, unless said
liabilities are the result of the negligence or misdeeds of Seller. This indemnity shall survive
Closing or a termination of this Agreement by Purchaser,

4. “AS-IS” SALE”; SELLER REPRESENTATION

a.

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES
AND AGREES THAT SELLER HAS NOT MADE, DOES NOT MAKE AND
SPECIFICALLY NEGATES AND DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATIONS,
WARRANTIES (OTHER THAN THE SPECIAL WARRANTY OF TITLE AS SET OUT
IN THE DEED) PROMISES, COVENANTS, AGREEMENTS OR GUARANTIES OF ANY
KIND OR CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL
OR WRITTEN, PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE, OF, AS TO, CONCERNING OR WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, (1) THE
WATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGY; (2) THE INCOME TO BE DERIVED FROM THE
PROPERTY; (3) THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY FOR ANY AND ALL
ACTIVITIES AND USES WHICH PURCHASER MAY CONDUCT THEREON; (4) THE
COMPLIANCE OF OR BY THE PROPERTY OF ITS OPERATION WITH ANY LAWS,
RULES, ORDINANCES OR REGULATIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE
GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY OR BODY; (5) THE HABITABILITY,
MERCHANTABILITY, MARKETABILITY, PROFITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF THE PROPERTY; OR (6) ANY OTHER MATTER WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY. PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES SELLER HAS NOT
MADE DOES NOT MAKE AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY
REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION, POLLUTION OR LAND USES LAWS, REGULATIONS, ORDERS OR
REQUIREMENTS, INCLUDING THE EXISTENCE IN OR ON THE PROPERTY OF
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. PURCHASER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND
AGREES THAT HAVING BEEN GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT THE
PROPERTY DURING THE REVIEW PERIOD, PURCHASER IS RELYING SOLELY
ON ITS OWN INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY AND NOT ON ANY
INFORMATION PROVIDED OR TO BE PROVIDED BY SELLER AND AT CLOSING
AGREES TO ACCEPT THE PROPERTY AND WAIVES ALL OBJECTIONS AGAINST
SELLER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE PROPERTY OR TO ANY
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ON THE PROPERTY. PURCHASER FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED
BY LAW, THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY AS PROVIDED FOR HEREIN IS MADE ON'
AN “AS IS” CONDITION AND BASIS WITH ALL FAULTS. IT 1S UNDERSTOOD AND
AGREED THAT THE PURCHASE PRICE HAS BEEN NEGOTIATED BASED ON THE
FACT THAT THE PROPERTY IS SOLD BY SELLER AND PURCHASED BY
PURCHASER SUBJECT TO THE FOREGOING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
PARAGRAPH SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSING IN PERPETUITY.




b. Seller makes the following representations as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date:

i. To the best of Sellet’s knowledge, Seller has received no notice advising Seller of its
violation of a law, governmental ordinance, order or regulation relating to the Property.
Seller agrees to provide Purchaser with copies of any such notices it receives following
the date hereof.

ii, After the date hereof, Seller agrees to operate the Project in the ordinary course of
business, and perform all of its obligations under the leases, Ground Leases and service
contracts, including maintenance until Closing. Seller shall not enter into any new leases
or agreements affecting the Property without the prior written consent of Purchaser, not
to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Seller shall promptly provide to
Purchaser copies of any leases or agreements executed prior to the expiration of the
Review Period. Seller shall provide Purchaser with monthly rent rolls and tenant reports
generated after the Effective Date, as well as copies of all notices received from or sent to
tenants and Ground Lease Landlords.

iil. Seller has the full right and authority and has obtained any and all consents required to
enter into this Agreement and to consummate or cause to be consummated the
transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been, and all of the documents to
be delivered by Seller at the Closing will be, authorized and properly executed and
constitutes, or will constitute, as appropriate, the valid and binding obligation of each
Seller, enforceable in accordance with their terms.

iv. Purchaser acknowledges receipt of the Global Settlement Agreement between the City of
Pontiac and the present owners of Ottawa Towers. Other than the Global Settlement
Agreement, there is no other agreement to which a Seller is a party or to Sellers’
knowledge binding on Seller which is in conflict with this Agreement, Seller agrees to
obtain all due diligence items required by Purchaser above as part of the Global
Settlement Agreement or such other means as are necessary. There is no action or
proceeding pending or, to Sellers’ knowledge, threatened against Seller or the Property,
including condemnation proceedings, which challenges or impairs either Seller’s ability
to execute or perform its obligations under this Agreement.

v. The Rent Roll, leases, operating statements and the service contracts provided to
Purchaser are true, complete and accurate and do not omit any material matter.

vi. All of Seller’s representations contained above shall survive the execution and delivery of
the Deed and shall survive the Closing hereof for a period of six (6) months,

5. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

a. ltisintended that the closing of this Agreement shall occur currently with the closing of the
Global Settlement, as such, there may be no proration as contemplated in this paragraph 5.a. as
these amounts would be properly accounted and prorated in the closing of the Global settlement.
If, however, such closing is not concurrent, or there remain additional amounts as outlined I this
paragraphs 5.a., the parties agree as follows: Collected rents (including CAM payments),
operating expenses, ad valorem taxes on the Property and personal property taxes for the tax year
in which the Closing occurs, and utility charges shall be prorated at the Closing, effective as of the
Closing Date with Purchaser receiving the rents and paying the expenses for the date of Closing.
Delinquent rents collected by Purchaser or Seller after Closing shall be first delivered to Purchaser
and applied to any amounts due Purchaser by any such tenant, and next delivered to Seller, If
current ad valorem tax assessments are unavailable at Closing, said ad valorem taxes shall be
adjusted based on tax assessments for the immediately preceding tax year, with said tax proration
to be adjusted in cash between the parties, based on actual taxes for the current year, at the time
such actual taxes are determined; provided, however, all special tax assessments made by any
taxing authority with respect to the Property shall be the sole responsibility of Seller and shall be
paid by Seller at Closing. Purchaser shall receive a credit for tenant security deposits that are not
yet forfeited or due to be refunded to tenants of the Property. Seller and Purchaser shall consult




. and cooperate with each other concerning the billing and collection of operating expenses for
calendar year of Closing from the tenants. When collected, such operating expenses shall be
prorated as of the Closing Date and the prorated portion paid to the other party by the party
receiving such payments. Insurance costs shall not be prorated.

b. To the best of Sellers knowledge, disclaiming all representation thereto, there are no Tenant and/or
related landlord improvement expenses, lease commissions, tenant allowances and other out-of-
pocket costs related to tenant improvements.

c. Seller is an exempt organization under Michigan law for purposes of transfer tax and other closing
cost, as such all deed and transfer taxes and any deed recording fees are exempt. All escrow costs
shall be shared equally. All other closing costs shall be allocated in accordance with local
practices in Oakland County, Michigan.

d. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and all liabilities, claims,
demands, suits, and judgments, of any kind or nature, including court costs and reasonable
attorney fees (except those items which under the terms of this Agreement specifically become the
obligation of Seller), brought by third parties and based on events occurring after the Closing and
which are in any way related to the Property. Seller agrees to indemnify and hold Purchaser
harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, suits, and judgments, of any kind or nature,
including court costs and reasonable attorney fees, brought by third parties and based on events
occurring before the Closing and which are in any way related to the Property

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP, At Closing, Seller and Purchaser shall enter into a Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) Agreement for the Phoenix Center, The parties intend that the PPP will provide
Purchaser exclusive use of the parking structure to support the commercial demands of the Property, but
also allow for shared parking for the Property and for the Phoenix Plaza/Amphitheater when restored and
opened or use by Seller, Purchaser’s grant of perpetual access to and use all of the parking areas in the
Phoenix Center is in exchange for Purchaser’s agreement to repair, maintain and operate said parking areas,
The terms of the Public Private Partnership that grant access and control of the parking areas shall be
contained in a Master Ground Lease from Seller of said parking areas for an initial term of twelve (12)
months, or as shortened by the early payoff and satisfaction of the Land Contract by Purchaser, Upon
satisfaction of the Land Contract, the Master Ground Lease shall be concurrently extended for a 50-year
term, with five (5) ten year options to extend said lease, all at a rental rate of $1.00 per year. Seller shall
have exclusive control of the roof and plaza of the Phoenix Center and shall at its own expense maintain,
repair and exercise control over the Phoenix Center roof, plaza and its access elements, Seller shall assign
all property and development rights in any manner related to the Property and Phoenix Center including,
without limitation, the two developable building pads on the roof of the Phoenix Center, Seller shall
support research and application for certain available local, state and federal incentives to support the
redevelopment of the Phoenix Center and the Property, including all adjacent parcels and building sites,
Examples of potential incentives for the property may include, without limitation, an application for a 12
year OPRA Agreement, a Brownfield TIF Redevelopment Agreement, and/or such grant funds as may be
available to create a park-like setting with the amphitheater, It is the parties intent to mutually agree upon
the design and planning standards for the Phoenix Center, with elements that may be in a form set forth in
“The CNU Plan of 20177, or the “Moving Pontiac Forward Plan”. Any final development plan for the
property shall include input from the City, its Council and officials.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THIS PURCHASE
AGREEMENT, THE COMMITMENT(S) TO BE PROVIDED TO PURCHASER UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE ITEMS OF RECORD DISCLOSED IN THE COMMITMENT(S), PURCHASER
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT SELLER, FOLLOWING ITS ACQUISITION OF TITLE TO THE
OTTAWA TOWER I, THE GRASSY LOT AND OTTAWA TOWER Il (THE “PROPERTY”) AND PRIOR
TO THE CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY TO PURCHASER HEREUNDER, THAT THE SELLER
SHALL EXTINGUISH, TERMINATE, CANCEL AND/OR DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS,
EASEMENTS AND LICENSES WHICH PERMIT OR AUTHORIZE THE USE OF THE PHOENIX CENTER
PARKING GARAGE FOR PARKING PURPOSES OR ANY OTHER PURPOSE. PURCHASER
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT IS PURCHASING THE PROPERTY WITHOUT ANY




EASEMENT OR LICENSE TO UTILIZE THE PHOENIX CENTER FOR ANY PURPOSE WHATSOEVER
OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT

a. The Seller and Purchaser shall commence final drafting of the Master Ground Lease and Public
Private Partnership Agreement within five (5) days of the date hereof, and in that process include
representative input from members of the City Administration and Council,

b. The Letter from Dearborn Capital, dated and signed on November 20, 2020, is incorporated herein
by reference,

7. COMMISSIONS The parties acknowledge and shall be responsible for the payment of a real estate
commission arising out of this transaction in the amount of $296,000.00 payable to Dirt Realty, LLC, as set
forth above. The commission represents 4% of the purchase price which is assigned as follows: Seller shall
pay 2.9% and Purchaser shall pay 1.1% of the 4% total commission upon satisfaction of the Land Contact.
Purchaser and Seller do hereby represent and watrant that, other than the commission claim of Dirt Realty,
LLG, it its officers, employees and agents, they have not contracted for any such real estate commissions,
nor have they, without knowledge of the other party, contacted real estate agents or brokers, nor have they,
without the other party’s knowledge, acted in a manner so as to give rise to a claim for such real estate
commissions or similar fees. Purchaser and Seller do hereby agree to indemnify the other party against and
hold the other party harmless from any and all such real estate commissions, claims for such commissions
or similar fees, including attorneys’ fees incurred in any lawsuit regarding such commissions or fees
claimed by persons by or through Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be. The provisions of this paragraph
shall survive Closing.

8. RISK OF LOSS Risk of loss until the Closing shall be borne by Seller. In the event that damage, loss or
destruction of the Property or any part thereof, by fire or other casualty, including an environmental
casualty, or through condemnation or sale in lieu thereof, occurs prior to the actual closing of the
transactions contemplated hereby, the extent of such damage or taking involving more than $1,000,000, the
Purchaser shall, at its option, elect one of the following:

a. To terminate this Agreement and receive an immediate refund of all Earnest Money previously
deposited.

b, To close the transactions contemplated hereby and take an assignment of and receive in cash all
insurance or condemnation proceeds payable as a result of such casualty loss or condemnation,
and receive a credit in the amount of any deductible applicable to such insurance coverage, or, if
such proceeds are not made available by the holder or holders of any indebtedness secured by liens
against the Property, to receive a credit against the Purchase Price (applied first against the cash
portion thereof due at Closing) in the amount of such casualty loss or condemnation proceeds
together with any deductible amount applicable thereto.

9. TERMINATION AND DEFAULT

a. Purchaser acknowledges that the failure of Purchaser to complete the closing hereunder shall
cause significant and irreparable damage to the Seller. As such, if Seller is not then in default in its
obligations or agreements and Purchaser fails to close the transaction contemplated hereby, Seller
shall be entitled to receive the Earnest Money or Seller may seek specific performance of this
agreement,

b. Inthe event that any of the Seller’s representations or warranties contained herein are untrue ot if
Seller shall have failed to have performed any of the covenants and/or agreements contained
herein which are to be performed by Seller, or if any of the conditions precedent to Purchaser’s
obligation to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby shall have failed to occur,
Purchaser may, at its option, terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to
Seller and receive a full and immediate refund of any and all Earnest Money previously deposited
as its remedy or Purchaser may seek specific performance of this agreement,




10, NOTICES Any notice, request, demand, instruction or other communication to be given fo either party

1

hereunder, except those required to be delivered at Closing, shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to be
given upon receipt, if hand delivered or delivered by express delivery service, or two (2) days after deposit
of such notice in registered or certified mail, return receipt requested (provided that any notice of
termination shall be effective immediately upon deposit in registered ot certified mail, return receipt
requested), addressed to the parties at the address provided in Article 1.

|. MISCELLANEOUS

a. Entire Agreement, THIS AGREEMENT AND THE EXHIBITS ATTACHED HERETO
. CONTAIN THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND NO

PROMISE, REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT NOT INCLUDED IN THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY SUCH REFERENCED AGREEMENTS HAS BEEN OR IS RELIED
UPON BY EITHER PARTY.

b. No Oral Modification, NO MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL BE OF ANY FORCE OR EFFECT UNLESS MADE IN WRITING AND EXECUTED
BY BOTH PURCHASER AND SELLER.

¢. Choice of Law and Venue. In the event that any litigation arises hereunder, it is specifically
stipulated that this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed according to the laws of the State
of Michigan, and shall be performable in Oakland County, Michigan.

d. Attorneys’ Fees. The prevailing party in any litigation between the parties arlsmg under this
Agreement shall be entitled to recover reasonable attomey s fees.

e. Counterparts, This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts which together
shall constitute the agreement of the parties. The article headings herein contained are for purposes
of identification only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.

f. Assignment. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations hereunder, may not be assigned by
Purchaser without the written consent of the Seller, which consent shall not unreasonably be
withheld, and further provided that Purchaser may assign to any entity a majority of which is
owned by Purchaser ,

g. Date of Agreement. All references in this Agreement to “the date hereof,” “Effective Date”, or
similar references shall be deemed to refer to the date the Escrow Agent provides the parties with
a written receipt of a fully executed counterpart of this Agreement.

h. Parties Bound. This Agreement and the terms and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, personal
representatives, successors and assigns whenever the context so requires or admits.

i. Enforceability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provisions shall be fully severable, and this
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision
had never comprised a part of this Agreement, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect and not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision or by its severance from this Agreement, provided that both parties hereto may still
effectively realize the complete benefit of the transaction contemplated hereby.

j. Confidentiality. This Agreement and all of the terms and provisions hereof are confidential,
Purchaser and Seller agree to keep confidential (and shall use their best efforts to cause their
agents, employees and brokers to keep confidential) all discussions of this Agreement, the
proposed acquisition, all documents and materials delivered pursuant to this Agreement, except for
necessary disclosure to partnets, employees, accountants, attorneys, brokers, potential investors,
lenders and consultants of the parties hereto. No public announcements concerning this
Agreement or the transaction contemplated herein shall be made by either party without the
mutual consent of the parties, SPECIFICALLY, SELLER SHALL KEEP THE PURCHASE
PRICE AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL. '




[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

SELLER:
CITY OF PONTIAC

By: Deirdre Waterman

Date:

PURCHASER: , |
DEARBORN CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC, on behalf on
an entity to be formed. '

By: Brien Wloch

B Pl

Date: Novemnber 29, 2020

ACCEPTANCE BY TITLE COMPANY

The undersigned title company; ATA National Title Group (Seaver Title Agency) referred to in the foregoing
Contract as the “Title Company”, hereby acknowledges receipt of a fully executed copy (or executed counterparts)
of thq foregoing Contract and accepts-the obligations of the Title Company as set forth in such Contract.

By:

Its:
Date:

10




EXHIBIT A-1

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PREMISES

“Ottawa Tower I’ or “Woodward Parcel”, being Tax Parcel 14-32-226-020:

All or parts of the following Lots and parcels in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan:
Lot numbers 5, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11, ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO., 65, as recorded in Liber 1A on Page
65 of Plats, Oakland County Records and Lot numbers 31 through 39, inclusive, ASSESSOR'S
PLAT NO. 114, as recorded in Liber 53 on Page 9 of Plats, Oakland County Records, and part of
Lot 7 of SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOTS 18, 22 AND 23 in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 29, Town
3 North, Range 10 East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 1 on
Page 3 of Plats, Oakland County Records, (shown as Detroit Grand Haven & Milwaukee Railroad,
excepted from Assessors Plat No, 114), also vacated Dawson Alley, all the aforementioned being
more particulatly described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet along the
Easterly Right of Way line of Saginaw Street and South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West
249.58 feet along the Northerly Right of Way line of proposed Judson Street from the Northwest
corner of Lot 16 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A of Plats on Page 71, Oakland
County Records; thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 108.89 feet, along the
Northerly Right of Way line of proposed Judson Street; thence North 31 degrees 27 minutes 19
seconds West 451.91 feet along the Easterly Right of Way line of West Wide Track to a point on
the South Right of Way line of revised Orchard Lake Avenue; thence along the said Orchard Lake
Right of Way line North 88 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 25.00 feet and North 75 degrees
47 minutes 56 seconds East 173.34 feet to the beginning of a curve, along the arc of said curve to
the right 51.05 feet (Delta = 13 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, Radius = 225.00 feet, Chord
bearing and distance North 82 degrees 17 minutes 56 seconds East 50.94 feet) and North 88
degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East, 48.06 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds
East, 66.56 feet; thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West, 54.58 feet; thence South
14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East, 341.81 feet to the point of beginning, known as Parcel ‘F'.
This description being parts of Urban Renewal Project Area R-44 and Urban Renewal Project Area
R-20. ALSO described as: Assessors Plat No. 65, Sections 29 and 32, Town 3 North, Range 10
East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, Part of Lots 5 through 8 inclusive, Part of Lots
10 and 11, ALSO Part of vacated Dawson Alley, ALSO part of Lots 31 through 39, inclusive, of
ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 114, ALSO Part of Lot 7 of Subdivision of Outlots 18, 22 and 23 in
Southeast 1/4 of Section 29, ALSO Part of Northeast 1/4 of Section 32 adjacent to Lot 5 of
Assessor's Plat No. 65, all described as: Beginning at point distant North 14 degrees 22 minutes
45 seconds West 79.00 feet and South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 249.58 feet from
Northwest corner of Lot 16 of Assessors Plat No. 130; thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42
seconds West 108.89 feet; thence North 31 degrees 27 minutes 19 seconds West 451.91 feet;
thence North 88 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 25.00 feet; thence North 75 degrees 47
minutes 56 seconds East 173.34 feet; thence along curve to right, Radius 225.00 feet, Chord bears
North 82 degrees 17 minutes 56 seconds East 50.94 feet, Distance of 51.05 feet, thence Noith 88
degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 48.06 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds
~ East 66.56 feet; thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 54.58 feet; thence South 14
degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 341,81 feet to beginning,

11




Grassy Lot” aka “Vacanit Lot”, being Tax Parcel 14-32-226-021:

Part of Lots 4, 8, 9, 10 and 11, including part of vacated Dawson Alley, of ASSESSOR'S PLAT
NO. 65, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 1 of Assessor's Plats, page 65, Oakland
County Records, all described as: Commencing at the Northwest corner of Lot 16, of ASSESSORS
PLAT NO. 130 A REPLAT OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 64, CRAWFORD'S ADDITION AND
SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT 6, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 54A of Plats,
page 71, Oakland County Records; thence Northetly along the Easterly right-of-way line of
Saginaw Street 79.00 feet to a point on the Nottherly right-of-way line of proposed Judson Street;
thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West, 96.55 feet to the Point of Beginning at the
intersection of the Northerly right-of-way line of proposed Judson Street (79 feet wide) and the
Westerly right-of-way line of Saginaw Street; thence continuing South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42
seconds West, 153.03 feet to a point; thence North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 144.81
feet to a point; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 153.93 feet to a point on the
Westerly right-of-way line of Saginaw Street; thence South 14 degrees 10 minutes 39 seconds
East, 144.72 feet along said right-of-way line to the Point of Beginning.

12




EXHIBIT A-2

“Ottawa Tower II” aka “Judson Parcel”, being Tax Parcel 14-32-227~002:

All or parts of Lots 1 through 8, both inclusive, 14, 15 and part of vacated Auburn Avenue,
ASSESSOR’S PLAT NO. 130 A REPLAT OF ASSESSOR’S PLAT NO. 64, CRAWFORD’S
ADDITION, AND SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT NO. 6 IN THE N.E. % SEC. 32, according to
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 54A of Plats, page 71, Oakland County Records, described
as: Beginning at a point located Northetly 79.00 feet along the Easterly right of way line of
Saginaw Street from the Northwest corner of Lot 16 of said Assessot’s Plat No. 130, said Point of
Beginning also being on the North right of way line of new Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees
30 minutes 01 seconds West, 144,67 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East,
128.00 feet; thence North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 2.42 feet; thence North 75
degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 64,00 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds
East, 2.42 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 124,91 feet; thence South 14
degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East, 181.79 feet to a point on the Northerly right of way line of
Judson Street; thence along said Judson Street right of way line, North 85 degrees 36 minutes 10
seconds West, 6.48 feet to the beginning of a curve; thence along a curve to the left 214.75 feet,
said curve having a radius of 648,70 feet, delta of 18 degrees 58 minutes 04 seconds, chord bearing
and distance of South 84 degrees 54 minutes 44 seconds West, 213.77 feet; thence South 75
degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West, 100.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Together with the right to the use of the following land in accordance with a License Agreement
as granted by Pontiac City Commission meeting December 4, 1979, Resolution No. 738 to
Downtown Pontiac Development Company, recorded in Liber 7788, Page 142, as more clearly
described, limited and defined as; A parcel of land being part of the Saginaw Street right of way
adjacent to Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71,
Oakland County Records, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point located
Northerly 79.00 feet along the Easterly right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest
comer of Lot No. 16 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, in the Northeast % of Section 32, City of Pontiac,
Oakland County, Michigan, said point of beginning also being a point on the North right of way
line of new Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 minutes 01 seconds West 144.67 feet; thence
South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 15,09 feet to a point; thence South 14 degrees 32

minutes 05 seconds East 144.68 feet to a point; thence North 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds
East 15.00 feet to the point of beginning.

13




EXHIBIT A-3

Legal Description for Additional Partial Lots

Legal Descriptions for the following Parcels shall be incorporated at closing, as reviewed and
approved in the final closing documents.

14-32-226-021, 14-29-484-003, 14-29-484-010, 14-32-231-009, 14-32-227-003 and
the triangle parcel across Jackson Street from 140 S. Saginaw

14




EXHIBIT B

To Be Completed by the Parties

15




EXHIBIT C

To Be Completed by the Parties

16




EXHIBIT D

To Be Completed by the Parties

17




o #®
MINUTES
12-1-20



December 1, 2020 Study

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
203" Session of the Tenth Council

Call to order

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on Tuesday
December 1, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams.

Roll Call

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Williams.
Members Absent: Waterman

Mayor Waterman was present.

Clerk announced a quorum,

Excuse Councilmembers

20-539 Motion to excuse Councilperson Waterman for personal reasons. Moved by
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramsk1 Taylor-Burks Wllhams and Carter
No: None
Motion Carried

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda

20-540 Motion to move item 9 (Resolution to approve the City Clerk’s Medical Marihuana
Obligations) above item 3 (Status update requested on the City Council referral of an Emergency
Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2363 to include Medical Marihuana Facility Uses in Designated
Overlay Districts. The amendment allows the following: Medical Marihuana Grower uses are
permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts.
Medical Marihuana Processor uses are permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd
Medical Marihnana Overlay Districts) and item 4 (Status Update on Mayoral appointments to the
Medical Marihuana Commission). Moved by Councﬂperson Taylor-Burks and second by
Councﬂperson Pietila.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramskl Taylor-Burks Williams, Carter and Miller
No: None
Motion Carried

20-541 Motion to approve the amended agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and
second by Council Pro Tem Carter.

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila
No: None
Motion Carried

Approval of the Minutes

20-542 Motion to defer the meeting minutes for November 21, 2020 for one week. The
Clerk did not receive the Dearborn Capital Agreement. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second
by Council Pro Tem Carter.

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski



December 1, 2020 Study

No: None
Motion Carried.

20-543 Motion to approve the meeting minutes for November 24, 2020. Moved by
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Miller.

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pictila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks
No: None

Abstain; Williams

Motion Carried

Public Comment
One (1) individual submitted a public comment read by the City Clerk.

Suspend the Rules

20-544 Motion to suspend the rules to vote. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by
Council Pro Tem Carter., :

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramsk1 and Taylor-Burks
No: None
Motion Carried

Resolution

Mayor’s Office

20-545 Resolution to approve the City Clerk’s Medlcal Marihuana Obllgatlons Moved by
Councilperson Miller and second by Council Pro Tem Carter ‘

Ayes: Pietila and Taylor-Burks
No: Carter, Miller, Shramski and W1111MS
Resolutlon Falled

Suspend the Rules

20-546 - Motion to suspend the rules to vote. Moved by Council Pro Tem Carter and second by
Councilperson Miller.

Ayes: Miller, Pietilé., Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Williams and Carter
No: None '
Motion Carried

20-547 Motion to defer item 3 (Status update requested on the City Council referral of an
Emergency Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2363 to include Medical Marihuana Facility Uses in
Designated Overlay Districts. The amendment allows the following: Medical Marihuana Grower .
uses are permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay
Districts, Medical Marihuana Processor uses are permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton
Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts) and item 4 (Status Update on Mayoral appointments to
the Medical Marihuana Commission) to the Ad hoc' Medical Marihuana Sub Committee. The
subcommittee is to meet prior to December 8, 2020 and issue a recommendation to the City Council
by December 15, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Council Pro Tem Carter.

Ayes: Shramski, Williams, Carter and Miller
No: Pietila and Taylor-Burks



December 1, 2020 Study

Motion Carried
Council Member Shramski, Council President Williams, Pro Tem Carter and Council Member
Miller agreed to serve on the subcommittee.

20-548 Motion to suspend the rules to vote. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by
Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila

No: None
Motion Carried
Resolution
Department of Public Works (DPW)
20-549 Resolution to support utilization of South Blvd. Fn'e Station #2 to provide free

COVID-19 Testing, Moved by Councilperson Shramski and second by Councilperson Pietila.

WHEREAS, Fire Station #2 provides ample space and design with its two drive thru bays for increased
testing for the community it is idea for this initiative to increase access testing for those in the area,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontia¢ City Council supports the Mayor signing the
interlocal agreement between Oakland County and the City.of Pontiac to provide COVID 19 testing at
Fire Station #2 on South Boulevard Dr,

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Wllhams Carter, Mlller Pietila and Shramski
No: None
Resolution Passed

Suspend the Rules
20-550 Motion to suspend the rules to vote. Moved by Councilperson Pictila and second by
Councilperson Taylor-Burks;,

Ayes: Williams, Pietila, Shramski, and Taylor-Burks
No: Carter and Miller .
Motion Carried ‘

Resolution
Finance/Human Resources
20-551 Resolution to hire T.J. Adams & Associates as Executive Search firm for Provision

of Executive Recruiting Services to seek qualified candidates for the vacant Deputy Mayor position.
Moved by Councilperson Pletlla and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks
No: Williams, Carter and Miller
Resolution Failed

Adjournment
President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m.

GARLAND S DOYLE
INTERIM CITY CLERK



H3
~ SPECIAL
PRESENTATION



PONTIAC PARKS & RECREATION

* PARTNERSHIPS

« PARK DESIGN/PLANNING & ACTION PLANS
* MASTER PLAN 2021-2025

Special Presentation

Pontiac City Council
December 8, 2020 ﬁ%




PLANNING DIVISION

Parks & Recreation Partnerships




Oakland County 4x4 Wellness Grant

The City of Pontiac & Oakland County Health Division
2020/2021 second year program
Community initiatives that encourage Health and Wellness related
Activities, Improvements, and Projects.

PASS SAFELY, LEAVE 3 FEET

ﬁ' 'ﬁ




Pontiac Community Foundation &
Friends of the Pontiac Parks Association

Enloy Yourself

Parks and green spaces relieve stre

Recipients of a COVID Parks Response Grant 2

While you are here pleasa follow thesa

Park and Flays
Recommandations to stay healthy

s M yow mre wxh

ws hand senitizer bufors sand af

Initiatives completed in 2020 B REEP
"Pontiac Open Streets Program THIS PARK

»Cherry Lawn & Rotary Parks Walking Paths CLEAN
*New Park Safety & Cleanliness Signs PlTCH |N

baerve the COC [Canter tor Dissase Comtrol Ouidelines of I dist
from cthet persces, Ned in your group, & e tees.

Public gatherings of mors thans 100 ars prehis ted.

Mo contac] sperts | BEUVITies allcwed

Carry mushs and othes parsanal pratective sguipmend (o use =
nesded

; e ey
My i E 9

www, Pontiac.MLUs - 248-758-3600




Friends of the Clinton River Trail

$600,000 Grant from the Community Foundation for Southeast
Michigan’s Ralph C. Wilson, Jr. Trails Maintenance Fund

Design, Engineer and Construct Trail Improvements
between Pontiac Drive & Bagley Street & improved non-motorized
access across Orchard Lake Road to Beaudette Park




Neighborhood Empowerment Projects

Mayor Waterman established the Neighborhood
Empowerment Project (NEP) fund to complete
community and park projects across the City of
Pontiac.

Hawthorne Park — Disc Golf Course

Murphy Park — Ice Skating Rink



Skatepark Project Grant

OC Sheriff PAL Program and Pontiac Skate Park
Committee awarded a “Built to Play” Grant, from the
Skatepark Project, former Tony Hawk Foundation.

Matching grant, up to $250,000. Two year program:
[Fund Raising & Design/Construction]




PLANNING DIVISION

Park Design/Planning Initiatives &
Implementation Action Plans




Galloway Lake Park

Pontiac Rd >

Task

New Entry Drive & Parking Lot
Repurpose Ewald Community
Center

North Spur Trailhead and
Connector

Improve Fishing Pier, Boat
Launch and Waterfront Access

Replace and Locate Playground
Equipment

Install Inter-Park Walking Trail

Repair & Improve Basketball
Courts

Repair and Install Pits,
Benches, and Pavilions

Water Resource Commission
pump Station Plan

Description

New Parking Lot and Entry to Park
Determine use and improvement Plan
for Ewalt Center

Establish Trailhead and CLT North Spur
Connector within the park.

Study Improvements and Design to
Waterfront and Pier

Study Improvements and replacements
for Playground Equipment

Looped walking path inside park and
through amenities

Existing Basketball Courts in need of
repair

Study Identify areas to repair or install
new pit areas.

Determine Long-Term use of Pumping
Stations w/WRC



Crystal Lake Park

DOGGONE AWESOME Plan at Crystal Lake

Small Dogs New Entry Drive & Parking New Parking Lot and Entry to Park
Fun Run Lot
Rotate Run 3 We’;land Restoration Review condition of wetland area.
Beach fun g Determine Plan and use for Gre
Parkin mine Plan and use for Green
@ £ o Space Area
g Study Improvements and
£ replacements for Playground
= : Equipment
Crystal Lake Walking Trail Looped walking path through and
along Crystal Lake & Connector
Locate Ball and Play Courts  identify locations for play fields

Repair and Install Pits, Study Identify areas to repair or
Benches, and Pavilions install new pit areas.
Dog Park Proposed Dog Park and Play Area




Task

Improve Fishing Pier and
Waterfront Access

Replace and Locate Playground
Equipmeant

Install Inter-Park Walking Trail

Repair and Install Pits, Benches,
and Pavilions

Disc Golf Play Course:

Description

Study Improvements and Design to
Waterfront and Pier

Study improvements and replacements for
Playground Equipment

Looped walking path inside park and through
amenities

Study Identify areas to repair or install new
pit areas.

Installed 2020 and completed 2021



Murphy Park

) - . - Task Description
| PICK UP PONTIAC L — ) New Entry Drive & Parking Lot New Entry access to Parkand parking lot
— — PARKS - B improvements
KEEP THEM CLEAN
| | Improve Cricket Field & Ballfields
”.5 Install Disc Golf Course Explore Partnership with Local DG Group
2
s Green Space Restoration/Use Plan Determine Plan and use for Open
Recreation Area
Replace and repair Playground Equipment Study Improvements and replacements
for Playground Equipment
..... [g== : A LB ; Murphy Park Walking Trails Review interior walking paths and
j v _ improvements
Improve Sledding Hill Improve sloping, boundaries and access
to sledding hill
Propaosed Ice Rink Review Proposed Ice Rink
Repair and Install Pits, Benches, and Pavilions  Study Identify areas to repair or install
new pit areas.
. ~ Renovate Warming Station & Restrooms
o Bzl Fez
© Fayaroun:
©) voieybai Coun
o Fesrooms
— ) e
0 1




Rotary Park

J%m

Rotar_}' Park = Description
Gty of Poomac

Cog‘-ria:l Plaa New Entry Drive & Parking Lot New Parking Lot and Entry to Park
0
Replace and Locate Playground Study Improvements and replacements for
B Equipment Playground Equipment
goldnet walsh
| g, - Install Inter-Park Walking Trail Looped walking path inside park and through
amenities
. '_ e Repair and Install Pits, Benches,and  Study Identify areas to repair or install new pit
) m Pavilions areas.
7\
e % Cricket Field Install Cricket Ball Field and Seating
/' N
A\
o “\ Rotary Garden Design Rain Garden and Seating Area
N




Pontiac Parks and Recreation

Action Plan 2021-2025

Priorities & Projects/Programs for City’s recreation facilities
Maintenance & Operations
Park & Facility Development
Partnerships & Funding
Awareness & Communications
Connectivity & Accessibility

The Objectives of Action Planning is to align the goals and objectives with the
MI Department of Natural Resources and City Capital Improvement Plan



PLANNING DIVISION

Parks & Recreation Master Plan 2021-2025




Parks & Recreation Master Plan...
A Destination for Recreation

The 2021-2025 Plan is focused on a sustainable park system...
“+* Well maintained and operated

“+* Promotes inclusive programs and facilities

“* Provides equitable access to all residents




Review & Timeframe

The Parks & Recreation Master Plan 2021-2025

To review the Plan http://Pontiac.mi.us/P&RMasterPlan

Task Date
Public Notice-Oakland Press December 2, 2020
30 Day Public Comment Begins December 7, 2020
City Council — Special Presentation December 8, 2020
30 Day Public Comments Ends January 5, 2021
City Council Public Hearing & Adoption January 12 & 19, 2021
Submit to the MDNR January 25, 2021



#4
RESOLUTION



November 27, 2020

Mr, Garland Doyle, M.P.A., CNP, interim County Clerk
City of Pontiac

47450 Woodward Avenue

Pontiac, Michigan 48342

adoyle@pontiac.mi.us

Dear Mr. Doyle:

Global Alliance Protective Group, LLC is pleased to provide this proposal to the
City of Pontiac for Security Consulting and the review and analysis of security
plans submitted by prospective marihuana facilities.

As a vendor-neutral security consultant, we focus on the best fit and best practices
for our client. Global Alliance Protective Group, LLC certifies that we have no
personal or professional relationships with any persons applying to conduct
business in the City of Pontiac.

With more than thirty years of law enforcement and security related experience, we
offer security guard services, crime prevention classes, site security assessments
and planning, emergency management planning and response training, suspicious
indicators and other security staff training, evaluation of security departments,
training, and SOPs, audio/visual systems; multimedia; safety surveillance, access
control, and intrusion; wired and wireless networking technologies; network
security; server and tabletop virtualization exercises.

We have submitted our response electronically via email, as requested. We look
forward to the opportunity to work with you. If you have any questions or if we can
be of assistance in any way, please feel free to give Brian Stairacallat: ~— ="

Best wishes,

Brian R. Stair, Managing Partner



a®s

N4

Global Alliance

December 1, 2020

City of Pontiac
ATTN: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 47450 Woodward Avenue
Pontiac, Michigan 48342

Re: Professional Expert — Sccurity Consultant for Mcdical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 2357 (B)

Dear Interim City Clerk Doyle

This agreement will scrve to confirm our understandings whereby our firm wili be retained by the City of
Pontiac to serve as a "Professional Expert- Security Consultant to the City Clerk." During the cngagement,
we will provide advisory scrvices to the City Clerk, in his official capacity, in connection with his duties
under the City of Pontiac Mcdical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 2357 (B) and matters related thereto,
inciuding, but not limited to:

|. Reviewing the following section 8(c){17): a description of the security plan for the proposed
medical marihuena facility that is consistent with the requirecments of the department of cach
application and making recommendations to the City Clerk. In order to make a recommendation,
the sccurity consultant will conduct a thorough review and cvaluation of each individual plan
submitted to the City of Pontiac for consideration of licensing. Ensure that the plans comply with
the State of Michigan Marijuana Regulatory Agency, Rule 27 and all applicablc statc and local
rules and regulations. Provide to the City of Pontiac detailed written justification for each approval
and dental,

2. Review the Resident Subcategory of the Provisioning Center applications Section 9(f)(2) and make
recommendations to the City Clerk.

Responsijbilities

You arc responsible for the safeguarding of asscts, the substantial accuracy of the records, and the full and
accurate disclosure to us of all relevant facts affecting the engagement. You have the final responsibility for
information contained and decisions made affecting licensing,

During the coursc of this cngagement, Global Alliance Protective Group, LLC or Brian Stair is prohibited
from working or providing any other consulting services for the City of Pontiac in any capacity, other than
as identificd herein.

Privacy Matters

We do not diselose confidential client informatien unless authorized by you in writing. We will use
reasonable precautions to protect your confidential information, but we have no obligation to employ any
measures that you do not rcgularly employ in protecting your confidential information. We specifically
disclaim any liability or responsibility whatsocver for interception or unintentional disclosure or
communication of email transmissions or for the unauthorized use or failed delivery of emails transmitted
by us in connection with this engagement.

est for rvices
Y oumayrequestthat weperform additional services notcontemplated bythisengagement letter. [fthis occurs,we
willcommunicatewithyouregarding thescopeand estimatedcostofthescadditional services and wemay issuca
separate engagement letter outlining the terms ofthat engagement.



Fees

Our fees for this work will be atan hourly rate of $100.00 for performing the procedures involved we
estimate that cach site survey will take one hour, We will bill for all time spent on time onsite -
bifurcating the time on each individual invoice. This engagement is not to exceed $13,500.00,

Out-of-pocket expenses, if any, will be sent directly to the Client for payment, or we will pay those
expenses and invoice the Client forthe expenses. A detailed invoice will be provided on amonthly basis
and due net 30 days. Interest at 1.5% per month is charged for late payments, if necessary, cost of
collection, including attorney fees, are chargeable to the Client. -

Ifall invoices are not paid within 45 days of the invoice date, at our election, we reserve the right to
discontinue work until your account is brought current or withdraw from this engagemcnt, By your
signature, you acknowledge and agree that we are not required to continue work in the event of your
failure to pay onatimely basis for services rendered as required by this engagement letter. You further
acknowledge and agree that in the event we stop work or withdraw from this engagement as aresult of
your failure to pay on atimely basis, we shall not be liable for any damages that occur as a result of our
ceasing torender services. Youagree to pay forall collection costs, including attorney fees, in the event
your account is referred for nonpayment,

Termination
The City of Pontiac, by resolution ofthe City Council, or Brian Stair as the managing partner for Global

Alliance Protective Group, LLC, may, by written notice to the City Clerk, terminate this engagement at
any time, with orwithout cause, upon 30 days' notice to the other party, whereupon a final invoice will be
provided and all accounts settled.

Conflicts of Interest and Disclosure
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Global Alliance Protective Group, LLC, including

its owner(s), employee(s), and consultants agrees that it will not provide consulting services to any
(1) organization, (2) individual with an ownership interest in an organization, or (3) individual,
submitting an application for a marihuana facility license with the City of Pontiac. Global Alliance
further agrees that it will not review, analyze, or grade any application for any (1) organization, (2)
individual with an ownership interest in an organization, or (3) individual, submitting an application
for a marihuana facility license with the City of Pontiac, that it has previously provided consulting
services in any capacity.

Non-Retention

In recognition of the consideration provided herein, the Professional Expert agrees that, during his
engagement and for one calendar year after the close of the application review period (not including
any administrative appeal filed by an unsuccessful applicant), the Professional Expert shall not either
directly or indirectly, whether for consideration or otherwise: (i) solicit or accept business from any
successful applicant; or (ii) solicit or induce any successful applicant into any engagement, business
arrangement or agreement; or (iii) or accept any position of employment with any successful
applicant.




Dispute Resolution

Youagreethat any dispute that may arise regarding the meaning, performance, or enforcement of this
engagement will, prior toresorting to litigation, be submitted tomediation, and that you will engage in the
mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been given by either party tothe
engagement. Any mediation initiated asaresultofthis engagement shall be administered by alaw firm
specializing in the mediation process, not associated with either party, or selected by us, according to its
mediation rules, Any ensuing litigation shall be conducted according to Michigan laws, Theresults of
any such mediation shall be binding only upon agreement of each party to be bound. Costs of any
mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties.

We want to express our appreciation for this opportunity towork with you. Ifthe foregoing correctly sets
forth your understanding ofour security consulting services, please signand date theoriginal ofthis
letter in the spaces below and return it to our office.

Sincerely,
Global Alliance Protective Gr

Brian R. Stair, Managing Partner

p, LLC

Terms and Conditions Approved By:
THE CITY OF PONTIAC

Dated:

By: Deirdre Waterman, Its Mayor




{:: Deparement of Licensing and Regulatorn Affairs

Lansing, Richigan

This is to Certify That
GLOBAL ALLIANCE PROTECTIVE GROUP, L.L.C.

was validly authorized on December 20, 2017, as a Michigan DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.
and said limited liability company is validly in existence under the laws of this state and has satisfied its
annual filing obligations.

This certificate is issued pursuant to the provisions of 1993 PA 23 to attest to the fact that the company is
in good standing in Michigan as of this date.

This certificate is in due form, made by me as the proper officer, and is entitled to have full faith and credit
given it in every court and office within the United States.

In festimony whereaf, I have heretnto set ny hand,
in the City of Lansing, this 27th day of November, 2020.

s Clsy

Linda Clegg, Interim Director

Sent by electronic transmission Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau

Certificate Number: 20115156401

Verify this certificate at: URL to eCertificate Verification Search hitp://www.michigan.gov/corpverifycertificate.



POLICY NUMBER: CICP020355

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY DECLARATION

Conifer Insurance

550 W. Merrill Street

Suite 200

Birmingham, MI 48009

Phone 248-559-0840 / Fax 248-559-0870
underwriting@coniferinsurance.com

Venture Agency Holdings, Inc.
30555 Southfield Rd.

Suite 305

Southfield, MI 48076-7742
(248) 760-8294

Named Insured:
DBA:

Mailing Address:

Policy Period:

Global Alliance Protective Group LLC

1833 Jason Circle
Rochester Hills, MI 48306

2/6/2020 to 2/6/2021 at 12:01 A.M. Standard Time atyour
mailing address above,

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
OF THIS POLICY, WE AGREE WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE AS STATED

I

N THIS POLICY.

[

LIMITS OF INSURANCE |

Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000
General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000

Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 Any one person or

Damage to Premises

organization
$100,000 Any onepremises

Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $1,000,000

Medical Expense Limit

$5,000 Any one person

[ DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS ]
FORM OF BUSINESS:

[Oindividual [JPartnership []Corporation  [V]LLC [1Joint Venture [1Other
I ALL PREMISES YOU OWN, RENT OR OCCUPY T

Loc # DBA Address
1 1833 Jason Circle
Rochester Hills, MI 48306
L CLASSIFICATION AND PREMIUM




BRIAN R. STAIR

............. .. §

PROFESSIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT EXPERIENCE

Profi . More than 30 years of experience in law enforcement and private
rofile . . ) . ; ) »
security with recognized strengths in executive management, internal
investigations, labor relations, contract negotiations, arbitrations,
recruitment, training, promotional examination processes, and the
planning and implementation of proactive departmental policy and
procedures
. Self-motivated with strong organizational skills and the ability to
effectively train, motivate and supervise employees while managing
multiple processes
. Developed effective working relationships with local, state and federal
law enforcement agencies and other city departments
. Possess solid computer skills

Synopsis of . Detroit Police Department Officer in Charge of the Joint Investigative
Achievements Public Corruption Taskforce partnering with F.B.1., M.S.P. and other
federal law enforcement agencies to combat corruption

. Instructed Zambian Governmental officials on internal investigations
and methods to reduce corruption and graft in conjunction with the
U.S. Department of Justice

. Working in conjunction with the U.S. Secret Service successfully
credentialed over 500 public safety employees for Super Bow! XL

. Working in conjunction with F.B.I. and M.S.P., oversaw the Intelligence
Teams deployed for the M.L.B. All Star Game and Super Bow! XL-

. Ensured the fair and impartial investigation of all criminal allegations
lodged against all c¢ity employees in the performance of their duties as
well as all uses of force committed by members of the Detr0|t Police
Department

. Developed departmental policies and procedures related to conduct,
use of force and disciplinary guidelines
Developed the successful security plan and oversaw the operation of
the 2000, 2004 and 2008 Detroit Police Promotional Examination
Process

« Working in partnershlp W|th union leadership reduced employee
grievances by 75% YTD in calendar year 2014 from 2013

. Developed and conducted random audits of departmental fiscal
accounts ,

. Officer in Charge of the Force Investigation Section; Instrumental in
the success of the department’s strategy to bring an end to the federal
Consent Judgment related to the department’s Use of Force

. Evaluated and devised the operational plan for the Meza, Arizona Police
Department’s Internal Affairs Section

. Negotiated the collective bargaining agreements between the City of
Detroit and the Detroit Police Officer's Association and the Detroit
Police Lieutenants and Sergeants Association, 2013

. High Scholastic Achiever - D.M.P.A. Class 89-D

Employment ' Olympia Entertainment Inc., Detroit, MI
Venue Security Director - August 2017 - present
Little Caesars Arena - Home of the Detroit Red
Wings and the Detroit Pistons



Michigan Attorney General’s Office, Detroit, MI
Special Agent - February 2016 - August 2017
Flint Water Crisis Investigation

City of Detroit Police Department, Detroit, MI.
Police Commander (Promoted September 2005)
25 Year Service Retirement (June 2014)

POLICE COMMANDER - September 2005

C.0. - Labor Relations, October 2013 - June 2014

C.O. - Internal Controls Div., September 2005 - October 2013
POLICE LIEUTENANT - December 1999

C.0O. Internal Affairs Section, August 2004 — September 2005
Office of the Personnel Director - December 1999 to August 2004
POLICE SERGEANT - August 1996

Internal Affairs Section

Harbormaster Unit

Eighth Precinct Patro! Operations Section

POLICE OFFICER -~ April 1989

Second Precinct Patrol Operations Section

Tenth Precinct Patrol Operations Section

Northland Security Police Department, Southfield, MI

Certified Officer II - August 1987 April 1989

. Public Act 330 Certified

. Public Safety cross trained in Fire Suppression and Basic Law
Enforcement

Education

University of Michigan Dearborn, Dearborn, MI. B.A., Behavioral
Science

Wayne County Community College, Associate of Science Degree
= Detroit, MI : ,

Wayne State University, Detroit, MI

Graduate of the Northwestern University School of Police Staff
and Command, Evanston, IL. »

Graduate of the Senior Management Institute for Policing,
Boston, MA.

L.A.P.D Use of Force Investigation School, Los Angeles, CA
State Certified, Basic Crime Prevention, Executive Protection

Awards

Detroit City Council Testimonial Resolution
Board of Police Commissioners Resolution
Chief’s Citation and Medal (2)

Citations (2)

Chief’'s Unit Award

Chief’s Merit Award

Perfect Attendance Award (3)

Safe Driving Award

Rosa Parks Award

MLB All-Star Game Award

Super Bowl XL Award

Police Officer of the Month

Police Officer of the Quarter
Commendations (3)

Numerous Plaques, Certificates and Letters of Appreciation




REFERENCES

James Craig, Chief of Police — Detroit Police Department 1301 Third Avenue,
Detroit, Michigan 48201, Office -313-596-1801, '

John Hall, Senior Pastor Rehoboth International Ministries, 31731 Schoenherr
Rd, Warren, MI 48088,

James White, Executive Director — Michigan Department of Civil Rights, 3054
W. Grand Boulevard, Suite 3-600, Detroit, MI 48202, Office 313-456-3700,



73
RESOLUTION



CITY OF

Executive Branch

TO: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members

FROM: Dan Ringo, DPW Director, and Mayor Deirdre Waterman

CcC: Darin Carrington, Finance Director

DATE: October 27, 2020

RE: Resolution to authorize the budget amendment for fiscal year 2020/2021 to reallocate

$190,000.00 of the Council adopted budgeted expenditures from the General Fund.

As of October 27, 2020, the DPW Director of the City of Pontiac, Dan Ringo, requested that the City Council approve
a budget amendment to reallocate a portion of the fiscal year 2020/2021 Council adopted budgeted expenditures
to be used to pay vendors for Contractual Mowing Services. The DPW Director recommends reallocating available
funds from the General Fund.

The reallocation of funds is ‘'necessary because current budgeted funds in the Contractual Mowing Services
accounts are not enough to pay vendors for a full year of service. The reallocation of these funds ensures that the
City of Pontiac will have enough budgeted expenditure amounts within the Contractual Mowing Services accounts
to properly pay vendors for mowing services throughout fiscal year 2020/2021 ”

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration:

Whereas, as of October 27", 2020 the City of Pontiac’s DPW Director requested that the City Council
approve a budget amendment for reallocating fiscal year 2020/2021 Council adopted budgeted expenditures to be
used to pay for Contractual Mowing Services; and

Whereas, current budgeted funds in the Contractual Mowing Services accounts within the General Fund;
and

Wheréas, the reallocation of these funds ensures that the City of Pontiac will have enough budgeted
expenditure amounts within the Contractual Mowing Services accounts to properly pay vendors for mowing services
throughout fiscal year 2020/2021.

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby authorizes the proposed budget amendment for fiscal
year 2020/2021 to reallocate $190,000.00 of the Council adopted budgeted expenditures from the General Fund.
The total funds amount of $190,000.00 are to be used to pay for Pontiac’s Contractual Mowing Services during
fiscal year 2020/2021. '

1 of2



#6
RESOLUTION



CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members

FROM: Dan Ringo, Interim Director of Public Works

DATE: December 15 2020

RE: Resolution to approve a one-year extension of the CleanNet janitorial
contract

The Department of Public Works is requesting that the City Council approve a one-year
extension of the janitorial services provided by CleanNet of Greater Michigan for four city
buildings (PYREC, 50™ Courthouse, Ruth Peterson and Bowens Center). CleanNet has
performed strongly over the past year and their performance scorecard demonstrates their
ability to continue to meet our expectations. CleanNet has also been very responsive in
their handling and addressing of COVID-19 and deep cleaning services as it relates to the
city’s needs.

WHEREAS, CleanNet of Greater Michigan service over the last twelve
months warrants a one year extension of the initial agreement
approved 12/1/2019.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE

IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to extend the
current janitorial contract agreement with CleanNet of Greater
Michigan for 12 months beginning 1/1/2021 until 12/31/2021.

dr

Attachments.



November 10, 2020

CieanNet of Greater Michigan
Attention: Mr. Benjamin Deaton
30685 Northwestern Hwy, Ste. 203
Farmington Hills, MI. 48334

Dear Mr. Deaton,

The City of Pontiac and CleanNet of Greater Michigan hereby mutually agree to extend the contract for
“Janitorial and Custodial Services” between the City of Pontiac and CleanNet of Greater Michigan
originally dated 12-1-2020, along with subsequent changes, if any, with an effective date of 12-1-2020.
This agreed upon contract extension shall terminate at midnight 12-1-2021.

The contract extension is created in accordance with Article Six {6) of the agreement within the contract
documents. This correspondence will serve as our contractual agreement to extend the above-
mentioned contract based on the terms and conditions along with subsequent modifications, if any, as
outlines in our agreement dated 12-1-2019. We look forward to working with you and your team this
contract year.

If you have any questions, or concerns, please feel free to contact me at 248-758-3614.

With Gratitude,

City of Pontiac

By: Date:

Dan Ringo, Interim Director, DPW, City of Pontiac

Agreed: Date:

CleanNet of Greater Michigan

| concur: Date:

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, City of Pontiac



DPW DEEP CleanNet Area Sign Off

Building: City Hall Completed

Executive and Yes

Council Offices, and

Conference Room:

Buildings and Yes

Safety:

Planning: Yes

DPW: Yes

Treasury: Yes

Clerk: Yes

IT: Yes
Signature Date



DPW CONTRACTOR SCORECARD

Topic: Score Targeted Score
Attendance:
e Employees meet scheduled work | 8 10
hours

Work Place Accidents:

e #of incidents 0/10 10

e Cost of Incidents: 0/10 10

Facility Supervisor Satisfaction:

e Direct Program 8 10
e Building Superintendent 8 10
e DPW Director 8 10

Emergency Response Rating:

e COVID Response 8 10

Overall Communication and Response:

e Sr. Management 8 10

e Frontline Management 8 10

Proposed Program Enhancements:

e Discounts/cost savings initiatives 7 10

Other Considerations:

Supplies/Materials/Equipment 9 10

Total Score: 92 110

0-84 Unsatisfactory
85-90 YELLOW | Satisfactory
91-100 Goal Met




	20201203173404849
	20201203173443375_0001
	20201203173443375_0002
	20201203173518485

